
April 8, 2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Agenda            1 of  

Goshen Public Library and Historical Society Board of Trustees 
Regular Meeting of April 8, 2024  

(DRAFT until Accepted in meeting)  

AGENDA 

I. Call to order - 7:00 pm

II. Pledge of Allegiance

III. Review and Approve Agenda
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the Agenda as presented.

IV. Privilege of the floor

V. Approval of the minutes of the March 11, 2024 regular Board meeting.
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the minutes of March 11, 2024 regular Board
meetings.

VI. Personnel Appointments
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the following appointment as presented:
Appoint Amber Kirkwood to full-time competitive Library Assistant, exempt status, Orange
County Civil Service Title #1385, effective April 1, 2024.

VII. Finances
a. Financial report for March 2024 Catherine Lemmer
[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the financial report for March 2024 as presented.

b. Warrant Schedule for March 2024
[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the March 2024 warrant schedule as presented.

VIII. March 2024  Catherine Lemmer

IX. Committee Reports

a. Standing Committees
i. Physical Resources Committee - None

ii. Community Resources Committee - None
iii. Human Resources - None
iv. Sunshine Committee - None

b. Ad Hoc Committees



April 8, 2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Agenda            2 of  

i. Historical Society Committee  Trustee Quinn.
ii. Bylaws Committee - None

X. Reports from Partner Groups
a. Friends liaison  Trustee Troy.
b. Junior Friends liaison  Trustee Tarvin.

XI. Executive Session
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board enter executive session for the purpose of discussing the
employment history of a particular individual

XII. New Business

XIII. Privilege of the floor

XIV. Report of Trustee Continuing Education Credits

XV. Adjournment
[Action item] RESOLVED that the monthly meeting of the Board of Trustees adjourn.

Next Regular Meeting: May 13, 2024 @ 7:00 pm. 

Privilege of the Floor 
Pursuant to Article II, Section 6 of the bylaws of the Goshen Public Library and Historical Society, any 
member of the public, present at the meeting, may speak during privilege of the floor. The Chair of the 
meeting shall designate a maximum amount of time for privilege of the floor in order to run the meeting 
in an efficient manner. Comments may not personally denigr
behavior shall be held to the Library Rules of Conduct. 

Members of the public wishing to speak will be recognized by the Chair and be asked to stand, state their 
name and address for the record, and face the Board when making their comments.  



March 11, 2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes  1 of 3  
 

 
Goshen Public Library and Historical Society Board of Trustees  

Regular Meeting of March 11, 2024  
Draft until approved in meeting. 
Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2024 

I.  Call to order - 7:00 pm
The regular Board meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Goshen Public Library and Historical 
Society was called to order by President Meghan Boroden at 7:00 pm on March 11, 2024. 
 
Attendance:  
Board Members Present: Meghan Boroden, Tina Fortugno, Heather LaBruna, Bob Quinn, Jim 
Tarvin, and Bill Troy. Emily Collado arrived 7:06. Also in attendance, Catherine Lemmer, Director.     

II.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. Review and Approve Agenda 
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion, Bill Troy,  
Second, Bob Quinn.  (Approved 6-0-0). 

IV.   Privilege of the floor  None                                                                                                                                             
    

V.   Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the February 12, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes 
as presented.  Motion, Tina Fortugno, Second, Heather LaBruna. (Approved 7-0-0). 

VI.   Discussion of a native habitat project.  
After a lengthy discussion, the Board requested Trustee Quinn and Trustee Tarvin to continue 
discussions with O&R. 

VII.   Personnel Appointments 
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the following appointments as presented: 

 Anahy Chinas Campos to part-time non-competitive Library Clerk, Orange County 
Civil Service Title #1390, effective February 16, 2024. 



March 11, 2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes  2 of 3  
 

 Charles DeYoe III to full-time competitive Librarian II, Orange County Civil Service 
Title #1368 effective March 11, 2024. 

 Michael Orth to part-time custodial worker, Orange County Civil Service Title #1201 
effective February 28, 2024.  

 Jerome Tatrabor, Orange County Civil Service Title #1402 to exempt status. 
Motion, Emily Collado, Second, Bill Troy (7-0-0). 

VIII.   Finances  
a. Financial report for February 2024  Catherine Lemmer  

[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the financial report for February 2024 as presented. 
Motion, Bill Troy, Second, Bob Quinn. (Approved 7-0-0). 
 

b. Warrant Schedule for February 2024 
[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the February 2024 warrant schedule as presented. 
Motion, Heather LaBruna, Second, Tina Fortugno. (Approved 7-0-0). 
 

c. Close dormant bank account. 
[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the closing of the Goshen Public Library New Building 

 Capital Project Fund Account held at Orange Bank & Trust Company and transfer funds 
to the Goshen Public Library MMDA Municipal Account held at Orange Bank & Trust 
Company. Motion, Jim Tarvin, Second, Bob Quinn. (Approved 7-0-0). 
 

IX.   Annual Report of Public and Association Libraries 
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board accept and approve the 2023 Annual Report of Public 
and Association Libraries as presented. Motion Emily Collado, Second Bill Troy. (7-0-0). 

X. January 2024 Catherine Lemmer 

XI.  Executive Session  
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board enter executive session for the purpose of discussing 
the employment history of a particular individual at 7:50 pm. Motion Bob Quinn, Second 
Heather LaBruna (7-0-0).  Motion to exit Executive Session at 8:20 pm, Tina Fortugno, Second, 
Bill Troy. (Approved 7-0-0). 

XII. Committee Reports 

a. Standing Committees 
i. Physical Resources Committee - None 

ii. Community Resources Committee - None 
iii. Human Resources - None 



March 11, 2024 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes  3 of 3  
 

iv. Sunshine Committee - None 
b. Ad Hoc Committees 

i. Historical Society Committee  Trustee Bob Quinn reported on the History Journal 
project and the creation of a sub-committee to discuss other projects. 

ii. Bylaws Committee - None 

XIII.  Reports from Partner Groups 
a. Friends liaison  Trustee Bill Troy reported on the over 100 attendees in attendance 

at  Goshen Gone lecture and on upcoming Friends Lectures. 
b. Junior Friends liaison  Trustee Jim Tarvin reported on the activities of Junior Friends, 

including a planned amateur film festival.

XIV. New Business  None.

XV.   Privilege of the floor. 
During privilege of the floor, Harlene Kresse asked for an explanation of exempt status of a new 
hire. Norma Nuñez-Langlois expressed support for the habitat project with concerns that 
sufficient lawn remain for patio events. Jim Langlois expressed support for the habitat project 
with similar concerns and asked a question about the timing of the receipt of tax receipts. 

XVI. Adjournment
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees adjourn at 8:23 pm. Motion, Bill Troy Second, 
Bob Quinn. Approved (7-0-0). 
 

 
Submitted by, 
Heather LaBruna, Secretary 

 
Next Regular Meeting: April 8, 2024 @ 7:00 pm.

 









Goshen Public Library & Historical Society
Statement of Cash Position
Capital Fund at 03/31/24

Cash accounts Balance

Orange Bank & Trust 9,255.06                 

Community Foundation
of Orange & Sullivan (CFOS) 57,869.29              

Total cash available 67,124.35$            

NO CAPITAL ACTIVITY  









Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      1 of 10

Board of Trustees
April 8, 2024 Board Meeting

March 2024 Library Report to the Board of Trustees

Select Statistics 
During March there were 8,487 in-person visits to the Library, and thousands more patrons 
visited virtually and found answers There 
were 2,600 . See discussion of Library website below under IT 
Services. The Library had no weather closures in March.

The following charts the visitors to the Library over the last year: 

.

The number of visitors to the Library in March 2024 visitors was 69% higher than in March 2024, 
due in part to way school holidays hit and weather closures in 2023. The number of visitors in 
March 2024 tracked above the annual 2023 monthly average number of visitors of 7,426. 

The Library issued 36 new library cards, bringing the total number of cardholders to 7,784. The 
overall number of cardholders will decrease as the database is cleaned up, removing long not 
used cards, in anticipation of the migration to Koha in August 2024.  It is currently anticipated 



Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      2 of 10

that nearly 500 inactive cardholders will be deleted in April. These cards are being evaluated for 
outreach efforts. In addition, new staff members will focus on outreach efforts around increasing 
the number of library users and card holders. 

Circulation
In March 2024, 10,961 items (8,279 physical and 2,682 digital) were checked out by library users. 
Goshen cardholders borrowed 1,542 items from the other RCLS consortium libraries. The Library 
lent 1,270 items to the RCLS consortium libraries. 

Video game use remains popular, with 121 games checked out in March; the average monthly 
checkouts over the last 12 months was 121. The Library lends Nintendo Switch, WII, PS4 PS5, 
XBox One, and XBox Series X games.

In March, eight passes providing free or reduced access to different museums and attractions 
checked out. The 2023 average pass monthly use was 13. The Friends expanded support for the 
program, enabling the Library to add the 9/11 Memorial and Museum, NY Transit Museum, and 
the Harness Racing Museum & Hall of Fame.  A poster is now in the Friends bookstore as they 
generously provide over $2600 in funding for the museum pass program. Anahy Campus, 
Marketing and Communications Specialist, is creating a new tri-fold brochure for the program.

includes nine yard games, board games, and puzzles. The newest additions to the collection are 



Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      3 of 10

a Dungeons & Dragons Adventure Kit and DI-library Kits. The D&D kit has everything someone 
might need to start their first adventure campaign. The DI-Library Kits provide the tools and 
instructions to learn a new craft before investing in your own equipment. Currently the collection 

Digital Resources 
In addition to Hoopla and Overdrive (Libby), the Library provides access to 75 database resources 
on its website. These databases range from research to K-12 educational resources, to self-paced 
skills training and language learning, to support for job seekers, entrepreneurs, and small 
businesses. Tutor.com provides live homework help as well as college essay and writing sample 
review.  

Digital Access Services
The Library uses Envisionware and Sonic Wi-Fi counters to report on Patron Desktop and Wi-Fi 
Usage. 

In March 2024, there were 5,617 Wi-Fi sessions, or an average of 182 per day. The 
-Fi is broadcast to the parking lot and provides valuable access to internet 

when the building is closed.
In March 2024, there were an estimated 749 Patron Desktop sessions, an average of 25 
per day. Final report not available due to closeness of month end. This includes computers 
in Adult, YA/Teen, and Just for Kids. There is no charge to use the computers and guest 
passes are available to individuals without library cards. In March, the Library issued 140
computer guest passes. In 2023, the Library averaged 127 guest passes per month.



Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      4 of 10

Reference/Information Patron Interactions
In March 2024, the Library Staff responded to 1,977 patron reference, readers advisory, 
technology, and library resources and services questions (excludes directional questions). 
Questions are responded to via telephone, email, and in-person. Since March 2023, all 
departments have been tracking and reporting patron interaction statistics.

Community Spaces 

Art Galley/Exhibit Space
The Goshen Art League (GAL) Exhibit celebrating winter and literacy closed on April 4. The next 
exhibit Through Our Eyes, a Portrayal of Creativity Through the Eyes of Two Local Artists opens 
April 5 through June 5. The exhibit includes paintings by David J. Valentin and photographs by 
Jason D. Ropchock. 

Study Rooms, Meeting Rooms, and Pomares Community Room

seekers, entrepreneurs, remote workers, support services organizations, and civic and 
community non-profits. Sandra Delgado manages room reservation duties and has also 
translated the reservation forms and guidelines into Spanish. The reservation forms (English and 
Spanish) are on the website.



Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      5 of 10

In March, th 131 times and the two meeting rooms were used 
a total of 66 times by the community. The Pomares Community Room was used 5 times. These 
totals do not include Library program or meeting uses. The following shows the use over the last 
twelve-month period: reflecting a total use of meeting rooms at 714, study rooms at 1,994, and 
the Pomares Community Room at 100.

Programs
In March the Library hosted/sponsored 56 Library programs that drew 915 participants. Adult 
Services successfully experimented with Speed Friending and adding support for a writing group.
The 2:00 6:00 pm drop-in programming by Youth Services during the spring break holiday was 
greatly appreciated and the five sessions had a total of 128 attendees. A few nights we let the 
program run longer into the evening as families arrived.  

Love My Library drop-in story time remains popular with over 20 
attendees at each session. The entire Youth Services Team, Lynn Banghart, Kathy LaRocca, 
Virginia Nasser, Rosa Pomar-Desire, Kitty Ruberté-Smith, and Clarisa Rosario-DeGroate along 
with help from David Maloney, Karen Golding, and Sandra Delgado did a wonderful job during 
the transition time delivering great service and programs. Everyone helped out and made the 
Library the place to be for our patrons. Other programs included early childhood development 
and literacy programs, community health, theatre events, YA activities, book clubs, lectures, 
movement classes, and art, music, tech, and educational programs. The department reports are 
attached for more detail.



 
 

Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      6 of 10 
  
  

 

Karen Golding, Head of YA, specifically notes the efforts of two teen volunteers. Tyler Wong who 
developed and has been leading the bi-weekly Pokémon club with great success. And secondly, 
Alexa Krabbe who planned and a held a concert at the Library to benefit the Wounded Warriors 
Foundation. She and fellow National Junior Honor Society members performed patriotic songs 
on Saturday, March 23. In March another 60 volunteer hours were provided in support of library 
programs by 15 teen volunteers.  
 
New technology programs start in April. On Wednesdays there will be walk-in one-on-one tech 
support drop-in sessions and an introduction to online resources on April 24. 

Program Assessment Work  
Elizabeth DiGiorgio, graduate student in the Syracuse University of School of Information Studies, 
chose to use Goshen Public Library & Historical Society for her capstone project in her Library 
Planning, Marketing, and Assessment Class. Liz did a thorough analysis of many aspects of the 

and presented a fully developed program concept around serving our ESL and Spanish-speaking 
populations. Her over 100-page written s for Improvement & Program 

all members of our service population. Liz has 
been working as an intern in the Local History Room for the last 9 months and her service has 
been invaluable. Her internship concludes in May.  
 
Local History Room News 
The History Journal project is moving ahead with an anticipated publication date of early winter. 
Authors are researching and writing, and the editorial board is making determinations on style 
and format. Work is also advancing on the selection of a printer. 
 
General Operations 
Grant Awards 
Grant funds of $27,500 were received in March. These funds stem from grant applications for 
technology funding written by Ruth Mallard, Head of Adult Services, and the Director in May 
2023. The awards come from Bullet Aid, $7,500 from Senator James Skoufis and $20,000 from 
Assemblyman Brian Maher. Library staff have visited Newburgh Public Library and Pearl River 
Public Library to view their technology resources and programs. Jerome Tatrabor is preparing a 
detailed implementation plan that will be brought to the Trustees. We plan to include an update 
to our application plans in our thank you to Assemblyman Maher in the next weeks. 

A few weeks ago, RCLS hosted a one-hour presentation on NYS Legislature funding. The 
recording of Guide to Understanding and Requesting Funding Through the NYS Legislature is 
in Niche Academy. This session will be removed on April 26th. It Is a quick way to get an 
understanding of various funding streams.  



 
 

Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      7 of 10 
  
  

 

In addition, the second installment of the Orange County Technology Contract funding of 
$3,455.24 was received. This is funding the Orange County Library Association works to secure 
each year.  

Personnel Matters  
 Amber Kirkwood, joined the Library, effective April 1, 2024 as Director of Youth 

role in Adult Services, providing the Library with the opportunity to de-silo and effectively 
coordinate its programming and community engagement efforts. 

 Open Positions. As of April 3, the Library has a full-time Adult Services Librarian position 
open and has made a request for the Librarian I eligible list from Civil Service. The Library 
has posted two part-time librarian positions to help round out the Youth Services and 
Adult Services teams. These positions will cover primarily weekend and evening shifts.  

 
Communications & Marketing 
Adult Services and Communications are using Meetup, an online event platform, to enhance the 

-Friending event was the first use of the 
platform, and it went well with ongoing engagement by the users. The engagement on the 
platform provides insight into what types of entertainment/programs are of interest. The newly 
designed Youth Services program brochure has been well received, with high engagement on 
both Instagram and Facebook. The new look is cleaner and more inviting. The two public digital 
monitors (outside Just for Kids and in the foyer) are also being used to promote programs and 
events. The new series on our social media platforms, "Happening This Week," has launched and 
will continue to be a regular feature. 

IT & Technology Updates 
An 
have been identified and are being corrected. For example, staff using the unsecured public WI-
FI network rather than the secure WI-FI network and poor password management. Jerome 
Tatrabor is being added as a dual administrator to the services such as the phone system and 
visitor counter to create a stable succession plan around technology. Other projects include: 
 

 IT Equipment Inventory: This ongoing project involves creating a comprehensive list and 
documentation of all IT equipment owned by the Library. This is crucial for asset 
management, maintenance planning, and budgeting. 

 Phone Auto-Attendant Redesign: The system was simplified to eliminate user frustration.   
 Website Redesign: Ongoing work to restructure and simplify the website. Making it easier 

to update and maintain the website will ensure it stays current and reflects changes 
effectively. 



 
 

Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024                                                                                      8 of 10 
  
  

 

 Internal Communication and information sharing: An intranet web platform called 
SharePoint has been set up to facilitate internal information sharing. This includes internal 
news, announcements, documents. The information is organized by department for easy 
access. 

 Managed Services Provider (MSP) and Cloud Migration Plan: This project involves 
exploring outsourcing IT management and transitioning from Google to Microsoft 365. 

 Patron-Facing IT Education & Services: Offering training sessions and individual support 
will empower patrons to utilize technology effectively and address their specific needs. 
 

Community Partnerships and Projects and Outreach 
 The Library is writing a weekly column, Check It Out, for the Goshen Independent. The first 

column appeared in the March 27 issue. Although the first columns were written by the 
Director with staff input, the process is transitioning to management by the members of 
the programming team. Content is due to the newspaper the Friday prior to publication. 

 World Bee Day (May 20) will be used to bio-diverse 
environmental experiential learning center. O&R and the Library are coordinating a day of 
information and celebration. If the weather cooperates, the seeding of the meadow area will 
happen the first week of May. On May 20, part of the day will be used to plant the water plants. 

 The first Music for Humanity concert had 34 
attendees for Loretta Hagen  on Sunday, March 14.  Elly Winger & Dave 
Kearney perform on Sunday, April 14, and John Sheehan performs on Sunday, May 19. 
The concerts are sponsored by Bluestein, Shapiro, Frank & Barone LLP.  Posters provided 
by Music for Humanity are around town and at the Library. 

 Having our Say, a look back at the 
pioneering lives of the Delany Sisters was attended by 63. Their next performance will be 
on April 13. The performance, Ripcord, is a comedy about two women, one curmudgeonly 
and one maddeningly bubbly, in a senior living facility. Their final performance for the 
FY2024 year will be Pride and Prejudice on June 8. Ruth Mallard, Head of Adult Services, 
has done an excellent job working with Cornerstone to develop and implement these 
performances.  

 The Friends Lecture Series , 
Goshen Gone II, on March 9.  Coming up next on April 13, is Surrealism in Orange County. 

 Sandra Delgado translated additional recipes into Spanish for the Goshen Ecumenical 
Food Pantry.  

 Students from Life Skills (GSCD High School) and BOCES Main Street Students are in the 
Library for 2 hours on Monday and Thursday mornings. These students are accompanied 
by carers/counselors and complete custodial tasks. 

 
Koha Migration Matters 



Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024              9 of 10 

Work on the migration from Sirsi to Koha is starting full steam. Adult Services, YA, and Youth 
Services are currently completing inventory and weeding projects.  Ruth Mallard, Head of Adult 
Services, is coordinating the inventory of the catalogued materials in the Local History Room. The 
patron database will be reviewed and purges of inactive accounts in April. Train the Trainer 
sessions are scheduled for June 17  21 with full staff training to occur July 8-12. Ruth Mallard 
and Norma Fives are the Front-liners (RCLS term) for the Library on this project. 

Building and Facilities Matters  
Generator/Security System Grant. On March 7, the generator was tested and is now operational. 
The Library re-started the conversation with the Chief Ryan Rich, Village of Goshen, regarding 
a plan. The conclusion of the generator/security 
system project will enable the library to request the final $8,600 reimbursement disbursement 
under a grant that was awarded in 2019-2020. The Library will re-start the conversation with the 
Village of Goshen regarding a designation as an emergency shelter option. 

Offsite Storage. David Mahoney and the Director spent some long days sorting, shifting, and 
organizing three storage rooms. Youth Services supplies and decorations were consolidated, and 
vertical storage implemented. With this work complete, the Library will start to bring back the 
building materials stored at CubeSmart with the goal of ending the $400 monthly lease expense. 

Sustainable Libraries Initiative 
There is a growing interest in the Sustainable Libraries Initiative and Trustees are encouraged to 
an introductory look at the certification program and its benefits. The program focuses on 
meaningful work in the community around social justice, health, and climate, as well as 
opportunities to rethink expenditures that may result in lowering costs.  You will find an FAQ at 
this link: https://www.sustainablelibrariesinitiative.org/about-us/program-faq. RCLS is currently 
pursuing the certification as well as a few other RCLS libraries. Mamakating Library, Wurtsboro, 
NY, completed the certification program and the work they did and the benefits to their 
community is inspiring.  

Reports 
Adult Services Department March 2024 Report
Local History Room March 2024 Report
Young Adult (YA) Department March 2024 Report
Youth Services Department March 2024 Report

Correspondence 
Friends of Goshen Public Library, March 26, 2024



Goshen Public Library & Historical Society Report to Board 04.08.2024              10 of 10 

Beth Quinn Acknowledgement, March 22, 2024
Alan J. Sorensen, Commissioner of Planning, Orange County, March 20, 2024

, March 20, 2024
Senator James Skoufis, March 21, 2024









Youth Services March 2024 Report  1 of 2 
 

Youth Services Monthly Report 
March 2024 
 
Storytime classes and other programs launched  the theme with a new 
look for the Youth Services program brochure. The new look, created by Anahy Campos, Marketing and 
Communications Specialist, has garnered compliments for its look and easy to find information. The new 
brochure, along with other program information, is now playing on the digital screen outside of Just for 
Kids. The spring break (March 25-29) late afternoon drop-in crafts and activities were greatly appreciated 
by families looking for spring break fun.  

377 non-program questions and 188 program related questions were answered as well as 44 directional 
questions.

 

Program Attendance: 
Maker Mondays at 4:30 pm     
3/4: 6 attendees 
3/11: 5 attendees 
 
Wee Read: Mondays at 10 am  
3/4: 10 attendees  
 

Circletime: Mondays at 12 pm 
2/5: 7 attendees 
2/12: 7 attendees 
2/26: 7 attendees 
 

Toddletime: Tuesdays at 10 am & Wednesdays at 10 am 
3/5: 24 attendees  
 
Love My Library Storytime: Fridays at 11 am  
3/1: 23 attendees 
3/8: 17 attendees 
3/5: 20 attendees 
3/22: 21 attendees 
 

Spanish Storytime 
3/7:  2 attendees 
 
Drop-in Preschool Playdate: Thursdays at 10:30 am  
3/7: 22 attendees 
 
Reading Programs: 
Be a Research Ninja: 14  
Beanstack Solar Eclipse Reading Program: 19 
 
 



Youth Services March 2024 Report  2 of 2 
 

Specials: 
Lucky Day at the Library for All Ages March 15 and March 17 (drop-in): 32   
Spring Break Drop In: (5/128) 
 March 25: 23 
 March 26: 54 
 March 27: 26 
 March 28: 16 
 March 29: 9 
 
 

Take and Makes
March Scavenger Hunt: 66 
 

Future Plans and Ideas: 
The 2:00  6:00 pm drop-in craft programming provided by Youth Services during the spring break 
holiday was popular with 128 attendees over the five sessions. A few nights we let the program 
run longer into the evening as families arrived Love My Library 
drop-in story time remains popular with over 20 attendees at each session. The entire Youth 
Services Team, Lynn Banghart, Kathy LaRocca, Virginia Nasser, Rosa Pomar-Desire, Kitty Ruberté-
Smith, and Clarisa Rosario-DeGroate along with help from David Maloney, Karen Golding, and 
Sandra Delgado did a wonderful job during the transition time delivering great service and 
programs. Everyone helped out and made the Library the place to be for our patrons. Planning 
for summer reading  
 
Submitted, Catherine Lemmer, Library Director  
 
 














